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Financial Statements | Directors’ Report

Directors” Report

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements of Swiss Re Life &Health Australia Limited (the Company
or SRLHA) for the year ended 31 December 2022,

The Directors of the Company in office during the year and at the date of this report are:

James R Minto, Chairman — appointed 15 January 2019

Trent Thomson, Managing Director — appointed 3 November 2022

Melissa A Babbage — appointed 1 July 2020

Annette L King — appointed 1 May 2019

Jan M Swinhoe — appointed 23 May 2016

Seang Khim Oon — appointed 28 February 2023

Michael J Eves — appointed 24 September 2020, resigned 27 February 2023
Sharon J Ooi — appointed 1 September 2020, resigned 19 September 2022

This financial report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 28 March 2023. The Directors have the power to amend the financial statements of the Company.

Options
No Director or Officer of the Company is eligible for, or holds options over, unissued shares or interests in SRLHA.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the Company during the course of the financial year remained unchanged and was the transaction of life
and disability reinsurance and direct life and disability insurance.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

2022 remained a challenging year with weakening performance in the Total and Permanent Disability (TPD) portfolio. Retail
Disability Income {DI) experience improved after concerted business and industry effort in recent years to restare product
sustainability.

Rising interest rates and inflation during 2022 has impacted consumer affordability for insurance products. These macro-
economic factors have also introduced volatility in the reserving and financial performance of the business.

Whilst the COVID-19 pandemic is largely behind us, itis believed to have accelerated mental health related disorders and driven
healthcare costs and disability claims higher with a portion of the community displaying long-term health complications.

In relation to the SRLHA direct business, the remediation program relating to past conduct of a third-party provider who
distributed life insurance products on behalf of SRLHA, was completed in 2022. Further. during 2022, a decision was made not
to proceed with the renewal of two major distribution partnerships for direct life insurance products and hence the portfolio will
transition into run off and a focus on in-farce management from 1 July 2023.

Review of operations

SRLHA's operations are focused on continuing to deliver against a backdrop of a number of regulatory changes, including a
strong focus on operationalising key processes and frameworks to underpin a sustainable future for the DI portfolio and meet
APRA expectations. This includes robust cycle management framework, sustainable product design, disciplined use of new
business frameworks, increasing the utilisation of data analytics to monitor and manage portfolio performance, as well as SRLHA
taking an industry leadership position to help drive broader industry sustainability.

Reflecting a strong market position, the New Zealand portfolio continues to make a very positive contribution to overall SRLHA
results and is an integral part of SRLHA's long-term strategy to build sustainable growth,

SRLHA's salutions offering is an increasingly critical element of SRLHA's proposition to its clients and a key differentiator. Data

analytics through the proprietary platform Impact+ as well as solutions offerings in customer experience and claims and
underwriting rule engines continue to drive growth momentum in the business.
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Another major focal point for the business is the significant investment into systems, processes, and people to enable SRLHA to
reportits performance under IFRS 17 in 2023 and beyond.

Operating result
Gross insurance premium revenue decreased by 3.1% (2021: 4.4% increase) mainly due to the loss of some large Group
schemes and a business recapture.

Net profit befare tax was $99.4 million (2021: net loss $5.9 million), net loss after tax was $42.3 million (2021: net loss $19.6
million).

Financial position
At the year—end date, the financial position of the Company can be summarised as follows:

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Total assets 3,454,823 4,115,365
Total liabilities 2,096,369 2,713,102
Net assets 1,358,454 1,402,253

The Company had a capital adequacy multiple of 161% of its prescribed capital amount as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 159%).

Outlook for the future

The environment for the (relinsurance industry continues to be challenging and competitive, With its leading market presence,
robust operating platform, disciplined underwriting and pricing practices and overall value proposition, SRLHA remains well
positioned to capitalise on new oppertunities and achieve sustainable growth across the retail and group insurance markets.

The SRLHA Board continues to drive management actions targeted at improving sustainability, with ongoing oversight of new
product development and deep dives into key topics at regular intervals, including but not limited to, SRLHA's program of

activities to support and uplift the retail DI portfolio long-term sustainability, aligning with expectations from APRA and
customers.

Macro-economic factors are expected to continue to impact reserving and produce volatility in SRLHA's results. Pricing and
reserving assumptions are continually manitored and reviewed to reflect the latest experience and outlook.

Key strategic priorities for the business are to drive long-term sustainable growth and performance including partnering with its
strong base of retail and group insurance clients to meet their core reinsurance and solutions needs, as well as driving a number
of transformation initiatives to further enhance SRLHA's operating platform and product control framewaork.

Dividend
During 2022, the Company did not pay dividends.

Events subsequent to year-end date

Other than as disclosed in note 26 of the financial statements, there has not arisen between year—end date and the date of this
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to substantially affect the operations of the Company,
the results of those operations or the state of affairs in subsequent years.

Corporate governance

The Company is committed to meeting the highest standards of Corparate Gavernance in all its operations. Compliance with this
principle means the upholding of appropriate legal, regulatory and ethical standards. This is achieved through a Group-wide
Code of Canduct that expresses the Swiss Re Group's care principles and values and provides guidance on their application in all
business conduct stipulating the behavioural requirements expected of everyone in the Swiss Re Group, including Directors and
employees.

Indemnification and insurance of Officers

Pursuant to the Constitution, the Company indemnifies any Director or Officer of the Company against any liability to third parties
incurred in or arising out of the business of the Company unless the liability was incurred through dishonesty, lack of good faith
or breach of duty.

The ultimate parent entity, Swiss Re Ltd, has also given an undertaking to indemnify any Director or Officer against all expenses,

judgements, fines and amounts actually and reasonably incurred in settlement of any action, suit or proceedings brought against
themn.
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Rounding off of amounts

The Company is of the kind referred to in Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Corporations (Rounding in
Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 issued by the ASIC, relating to the rounding off of amounts in the financial
statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with that instrument to the nearest
thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

Environmental regulations
The Company has assessed whether there are any particular or significant environmental regulations which apply to it and has
determined that there are none.

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on

page b.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the Directors by:

T Thomson
Managing Director

Sydney, 29 March 2023
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ead Auditor's Independence Declaration under
Section 307G of the Corparations Act 2001

To the Directors of Swiss Re Life & Health Australia Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Swiss Re Life &
Health Australia Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 there have been:

i no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
i. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG Julia Gunn
Partner

Sydney
29 March 2023
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KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
Al rights reserved. The KPMG name and logo are trademarks used under license by the independent
member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

in thousands of Australian dollars Motes 2022 2021
Revenue

Premium revenue from life insurance contracts 1,854 4860 1.914.464
Premium revenue ceded to retrocessionaires (1,029.148) (1.043.784)
Net premium revenue 825,314 870,680
Investment loss 5 {51.435) (8.825)
Other revenue 6 442,653 309,152
Net revenue 1,216,532 1,171,007
Expenses

Claims expense 1.237.661 1.221,263
Claims recovered from retrocessionaires (596,828) {572,391)
Net claims expense 640,833 648,872
Decrease in net life insurance contract liabilities 16(a) & 17 (192.023) (101,735)
Other expenses 7 668,342 629,772
Net expense 1,117,152 1,176,909
Net proft/(loss) before tax 99,380 (5,902)
Income tax expense 9 (141,713) (13,708)
Met loss after tax 4 (42,333) (19,607)
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 19 (1.466) (58)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (43,799) (19,663)

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December

in thousands of Australian dollars Motes 2022 2021
Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 23 57863 132,369
Trade and other receivables 11 738.728 715,648
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 1.738,8356 1,795,523
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 16 806,539 1,218,048
Capitalised software ©o12 1,681 1,747
Deferrad tax assets 9 113,277 251,822
Total assets 3,454,823 4,115,355
Liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 423,936 359,691
Current tax liability 9 2,328 4736
Provisions : 15 8.900 71,038
Life insurance contract liabilities assumed 16 1,687,524 2,182,859
Life investment contract liabilities assumed 17 71.384 84,3
Deferred tax liabilities 9 2,297 10,877
Total liabilities 2,096,369 2,713,102
Net assets 1,358,454 1,402,253
Equity

Contributed equity 19 1,138,000 1,136.000
Foreign currency translation reserve 10,302 11,768
Retained earnings 212,162 254,485
Total equity 1,358,454 1,402,253

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December

Foreign Currency

in thousands of Australian dollars Motes Contributed Equity Translation Reserve Retained Earnings Total Equity
Balance at 1 January 2022 19 1,136,000 11,768 254,485 1,402,253
Net loss after tax 4 - - (42,333) (42,333)
Other comprehensive income 19 = (1.468) = (1,4686)
Balance at 31 December 2022 19 1,136,000 10,302 212,152 1,358,454

Foreign Currency

in thousands of Austrahan dollars MNotes Contributed Equity Iranslation Reserve Retamed Earnings Total Equity
Balance at 1 January 2021 19 1,136,000 11,824 274,092 1,421,916
Net loss after tax 4 = - (19,607) (19.607)
Other comprehensive income 19 - (56) - (58)
Balance at 31 December 2021 19 1.136,000 11,768 254,485 1,402,253

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December

in thousands of Australian dollars Motes 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:

Premiums received 1,878,740 1,921,872
Premiums retroceded (1.026.002) {1.039,629)
Interest and distributions received 61,584 53,152
Claims and other technical expense payments (1.761.692) {1.644,111)
Claims and other technical expenses retroceded 962,290 918,363
Other retrocession commission income 24 977 33,213
Other expense payments (166.388) (216,028)
Other income received 20,022 -
Net income tax payments 9 (13.856) (4,860)
Net cash (utilised)/provided by operating activities 23 (19,325) 21,967

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from the sale of financial assets 1,072,944 1,767,611
Payments for financial assets (1.125.481) (1,746,734)
Net cash (utilised)/provided by investing activities {52,537) 10,877
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held ' (71,862) 32,844
Cash at the beginning of financial year 132,369 100,151
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes {2,644) (626)
Cash at the end of financial year 23 57,863 132,369

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements and interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the Corporations Act 2001

The financial statements of SRLHA also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These are standalone financial statements and incorporate the results of its
branch, Swiss Re Life & Health Australia Limited, New Zealand Branch.

The life insurance operations of the Company are administered through statutory funds in accordance with the requirements of
the Life Insurance Act 1985. This report presents the operation of the statutory funds in aggregate with the shareholders’ fund of
the Company. The operations within the statutory funds comprise the insurance and reinsurance of life insurance contracts and
life investment contracts.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the fair value basis of accounting with certain exceptions described
in accounting policies.

The Company is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

Principles for life insurance business

Contracts that involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk are accounted for as life insurance contracts. Insurance risk is
defined as significant if, and only if, "an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario,
excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance” (AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts). Life insurance contracts include
those where the insured benefitis payable on the occurrence of a specified event such as death, injury or disability caused by
accident or illness.

Contracts that do not meet the definition of a life insurance contract, as they do not involve the acceptance of insurance risk, are
classified as life investment contracts. The cash flows under these contracts give rise to either a financial asset or financial
liability and generate a fee income for the Company, either from the services provided under the contract or administration of
assets held by the company.

Contracts that include both insurance and investment elements are separated into insurance and investment components that
are accounted for separately, but only where these elements can be reliably separated and measured.

Revenue from life insurance contracts
Revenue in respect of life insurance contracts is classified as premium revenue. Premiums are recognised as revenue on an
accrual basis, details of the methods used and assumptions made are set out in note 2.

Claims expense on life insurance contracts
Claims incurred in respect of life insurance contracts are treated as an expense, and are recognised when the liability to the
cedant or insured has been established.

Premiums ceded to retrocessionaires
Premium ceded to retrocessionaires is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of retrocession service received.
Accordingly. a portion of premiums ceded to retrocessionaires is treated at the reporting date as a trade payable.

Claims recovered from retrocessionaires

Claims recovered from retrocessionaires are recognised as revenue. Amounts due from retrocessionaires are measured as the
present value of the expected future receipts, calculated on the same basis as the life insurance contract liabilities, adjusted for
key contract terms.
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Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liahilities or policy liabilities are recorded using a methodology referred to as Margin on Services (MoS).
Under MoS the excess of premium received over expected claims and expenses ("the margin”) is recognised over the life of the
contract in a manner that includes the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder ("the service”). The movement in life
insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes the planned release of this margin.
Life insurance contract liabilities are ordinarily determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy cash flows
(premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected into the future. The policyholder
liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows and future profit margins using best estimate
assumptions about the future.

An accumulation method, valuing liabilities at the accumulated benefits available to policyholders, may be used if it produces
results that are not materially different from those produced by a projection method. The valuation of life insurance contract
liakilities are consistent with the basis prescribed for regulatory reporting in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS 340
Valuation of Policy Liabilities.

Further details of the methods used and assumptions made in valuing liabilities are set out in note 3.

Life investment contracts
Life investment contracts are accounted for as financial instruments, giving rise to a financial asset or financial liability based on
the present value of future cash flows expected under the terms of the contract.

Revenue in respect of life investment contracts is classified as fee income and disclosed in other revenue. Fees are recognised as
earned when the services under the contract have been performed.

The nature of this business relates to acquisition of a nil risk portfolio; thus, all incurred claims have no financial impact. Under
Australian Accounting Standards, such contracts are defined as life investment contracts and described as investment contracts
throughout this financial report. Life investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value.

Assets backing life insurance and life investment contracts

The Company has determined that it holds sufficient investment assets including cash, shares and fixed interest securities within
its statutory funds to match policy liabilities. The Company also holds investment assets in excess of those backing policy
liabilities. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured al Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL). Measurement at fair value of assets backing policy liabilities is consistent with how investment assets are managed and
their performance is evaluated. Unrealised profits and losses on subsequent measurement to fair value are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is determined as follows:

s Cash accounts and short term deposits are valued at the amounts deposited.

» Unit trusts, debt securities, and other market traded securities are valued at the price the instrument could be sold into an
active market, which is usually represented by the latest bid price for such an instrument. Where active market data is not
available, the valuation is determined with reference to broker quotes, cashflow modelling or other valuation technigues
commonly used by market participants for the same or similar assets and which are considered to be appropriate estimates of
prices that would be reasonable in active market situations.

= Receivables are carried at book value, which is the best estimate of fair value, as they are generally settled within 12 months or less.

Apportionment of expenses

Expenses are attributed to particular business lines, at either a class of business or product level, for the purpose of determining
product profitability and as a basis for assessing future expense assumptions used in determining future margins (refer to life
insurance contract liabilities above).

Expenses that are directly attributable to the sale and maintenance of a life insurance contract are allocated directly to the
relevant expense class of business or product.

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are apportioned based on detailed expense analysis, having regard to the
ohjective of incurring each expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment is consistent with the basis prescribed for
regulatory reporting in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS 340 Valuation of Policy Liabilities.

Costs incurred within the statutory fund are classified as:

Acquisition costs — the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business, including commissions and similar distribution costs
and costs of accepting. issuing and initially recarding policies;
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Investment management costs — the costs involved with buying and selling investments and the angoing management costs of
an investment portfolio; or

Maintenance costs — all other expenses considered to be incurred to administer existing life insurance and life investment
contracts.

Acquisition costs

Life insurance and investment contracts

The actual acquisition costs incurred are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, under ‘other expenses”. The
proportion of life acquisition costs not recovered by specific charges received from the policyholder at inception is deferred
provided that these amounts are recoverable fram future profit margins. The deferred amounts are recognised in the Staterment
of Financial Position as a reduction in policy liabilitics and are amortised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income over
the expected duration of the relevant policies,

Investment revenue

Investment revenue includes:

(i) Interest recognised using the effective interest rate method:

(i) Dividends, recognised on an entitlement basis when the securities trade ‘ex-div’;

(i} Profits or losses realised on the disposal of investment assets; and

(iv) The change in value of investment assets that are held on a “fair value through profit or loss’ basis.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried at cost which is the best estimate of fair value, as they are usually settled within twelve
months and subsequently subject to impairment testing. Impairment testing is based on collectability of receivables and is
reviewed on an ongoing basis. An impairment charge is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Company will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the contracts. The impairment charge is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in banks, and money market
investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, held to meet the Company's operational cash requirements.

Employee entitlements

The Company has no employees and as such all activities are performed by employees of the Austrzlian branch of Swiss Re Asia
Pte. Ltd. All employee entitlemnent costs are included within the management expenses charged from a related party (refer to
note 21).

Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the year is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the prevailing
income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. and adjusted
for unused tax losses.

Income tax is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable (or refundable) on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the year-end date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of the previous year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are
recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction by
the end of the reporting date. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and assessable
temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liahility. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arising from the same jurisdiction are offset against each
other.

The Company has a permanent difference between accounting profit and taxable income which relates to the Australian income
tax treatment of overseas retrocessions of accident and health business.
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Foreign currency translation

The Company's functional currency is the Australian dollar which is also its presentation currency. The Company also transacts in
foreign currencies through its New Zealand operations and when incurring expenses in foreign currencies. The results and
financial position of foreign operations in New Zealand has a functional currency different from the presentation currency and are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

s Assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate at the relevant year-end date;

s Income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date or at an average exchange rate,
being a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of rates prevailing on the transaction dates.

s Resulting exchange differences are recognised through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Balances relating to incurred expenses in foreign currency are translated in the same way as the New Zealand operations with
the exception of exchange differences being recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and not as part of other
comprehensive income.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the best estimate of fair value as they are usually settled within twelve
months. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year
and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors” Reports) Instrument 2016/131
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the rounding off of amounts in the financial
statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with that instrument to the nearest
thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the neares!t dollar.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable
from the taxation authority. In this case itis recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, must not be offset unless required or permitted by an Australian Accounting
Standard. Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Contributed Equity

Issued capital

Issued capital in respect of ordinary and preference shares is recognised as the fair value of consideration received by the parent
entity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of certain new shares are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Comparative information
Certain comparatives have been re-presented to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements, unless the possibility of settlement is
remote, in which case no disclosure is made. If settlement becomes probable and the amount can be reliably estimated, a
provision is recognised.

Contingent assets are nat recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements when inflows are probable. If inflows become
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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The amount disclosed as a contingent liability or contingent asset is the best estimate of the settlement or inflow.

Future Accounting Developments

New standards and interpretations not yet effective

= 2020-1  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current

= 2020-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current-Deferral of
Effective Date

m 2020-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards-Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of Accounting
Estimates

= 2022-1  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Initial Application of AASB 17 and AASB 9- Comparative
Informaticn

AASE 17 Insurance Contracts

AASB 17, a new accounting standard for insurance contracts, was adopted by the AASB in July 2017. In June 2020, the

IASB issued amendments to IFRS 17 which deferred the effective date from 1 January 2021 to 1 January 2023 and made
significant amendments to the standard in response to feedback from, and implementation issues raised by stakeholders. These
amendments were adopted by the AASB in July 2020. These amendments also extended the fixed expiry date of the temporary
exemption from applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments in AASB 4 Insurance Contracts to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

SRLHA will apply AASB 17 and AASB 9 for the first time on 1 January 2023. These standards will bring significant changes
to the accounting for SRLHA's (re)insurance and retrocession contracts and financial instruments and are expected to have a
material impact on SRLHA's financial statements in the period of initial application.

Measurement of insurance contracts

Measurement Models

¢ The standard introduces a new "general model" which SRLHA has adopted for the recognition and measurement of insurance
contracts. The liability for remaining coverage (which represents insurance coverage to be provided after the balance date)
under the general model is measured as the sum of:

= The present value of expected future cash flows and a risk adjustment for non-financial risk (collectively referred to as
fulfilment cashflows); and

= A Contractual Service Margin (CSM), being the unearned profit, which is recognised as insurance revenue in profit or loss over
the coverage period of the contracts. The CSM is earned based on a pattern of coverage units.

Level of Aggregation and Onerous Contracts

Under AASB 17, insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts and retrocession contracts held are aggregated into groups for
measurement purposes. Groups of contracts are determined by first identifying portfolios of contracts, each comprising
contracts subject to similar risks and managed together. Contracts in different product lines will be in different portfolios. Each
portfolio is then divided into annual cohorts and each annual cohort into three groups:

= Any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition;
= Any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; and
= Anyremaining contracts in the annual cohort.

When a contract is recognised, it is added to an existing group of contracts or, if the contract does not qualify for inclusion in an
existing group., it forms a new group to which future contracts may be added,

The level of aggregation requirements of AASB 17 limit the offsetting of gains on groups of profitable contracts, which are
generally deferred as CSM, against losses on groups of onerous contracts, which are recognised immediately.

As onerous contract testing is performed at a more granular level than AASB 4 and AASB 1038 it is expected to result in more
contracts being identified as onerous and losses on onerous contracts being recognised sooner.

SRLHA has developed a framework for identifying relevant facts and circumstances that may be indicators of onerous contracts,
This includes management information used for planning and performance monitoring.

Contract Boundaries

Under AASB 17, the measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary of each
contractin the group. Compared with the current accounting, SRLHA expects that for certain contracts the AASB 17 contract
boundary requirements will change the scope of cash flows to be included in the measurement of existing recognised contracts,
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as opposed to future unrecognised contracts. The period covered by the premiums within the contract boundary is the ‘coverage
period’, which is relevant when applying a number of requirements in AASB 17.

(Re)insurance contracts
For (re)insurance contracts, cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise during the period that is the longer of:

s The period over which SRLHA has a substantive right to compel policyholders to pay the premiums; and
m The period over which SRLHA has a substantive obligation to provide services until it can reprice to fully reflect the risks of the
policynolder (or of the portfolio of insurance contracts that contains the contract).

The contract boundary is reassessed at each reporting period.

Retrocession contracts

For retrocession contracts, cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that
exist during the reporting period in which SRLHA is compelled to pay amounts to the retrocessionaire or has a substantive right
to receive services from the retrocessionaire. A substantive right to receive services from the retrocessionaire ends when the
retrocessionaire:

s Has the practical ability to reassess the risks transferred to it and can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those
reassessed risks; or
= Has a substantive right to terminate the coverage.

Risk Adjustment

The risk adjustment measures the compensation required for uncertainty related to non-financial risk and reflects the
compensation SRLHA would require for bearing this non-financial risk and its degree of risk aversion. Provision for uncertainty
related to financial risks are included in the present value of future cash flows under AASB 17.

The Risk Adjustment is measured by a cost of capital method implemented via a factor-based approach. Risk Adjustment factors
are applied on valumes which reflect the risk characteristics of the portfolio and are propertional to the measures used to
calculate the compensation for risk charged by SRLHA when costing new business.

The confidence level of the Risk Adjustment under the cost of capital method is measured on the ultimate loss distribution. The
percentile on that distribution, to which the fulfilment cash flows corresponds to, determines the confidence level.

Risk Adjustment factors are calibrated ahead of the annual reporting cycle using the latest information available. Risk Adjustment
factors are reviewed annually considering the most recent margin for non-financial risk required as compensation when costing
new business.

Discounting
The Company will determine risk-free discount rates using a bottom-up approach consisting of the following two elements:

m Arisk-free yield curve; and
m Anilliquidity premium curve.

The risk-free yield curve will be derived from Government bond prices.

The illiquidity premium is derived from financial instruments with different liquidity characteristics than Government Bonds. [t will
be determined by taking a percentage of the yield differences between Government Bonds and Corporate Bonds. The resulting
illiquidity premium rates are differentiated by term and currency.

CSM

The CSM of a group of contracts is recognised in profit or loss to reflect services provided in each year, by identifying the
coverage units in the group, allocating the CSM remaining at the end of the year equally to each coverage provided in the year
and expected to be provided in future years, and recognising in profit or loss the amount of the CSM allocated to coverage units
provided in the year. The number of coverage units is the quantity of services provided by the contractin the group, determined
by considering for each contract the guantity of the benefits provided and its expected coverage period. The coverage units will
be reviewed and updated at each reporting date. SRLHA's coverage units are expected to be based on Sum Assured.
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Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17 will be applied using the Full Retrospective Approach
(FRA) to the extent practicable. Where it is impracticable to apply the FRA to a group of contracts or to an asset for insurance
cash flows then the Company will choose between the Modified Retrospective Approach (MRA) and Fair Value Approach (FVA).

SRLHA considers the FRA approach impracticable as the information required to calculate the effects of retrospective
application is not available because:

= Prior to 2019, cash flow information split per annual cohort is not available and therefore applying a retrospective approach is
not possible for the pre-2019 business. With the introduction of the current actuarial database during 2019, cash flow splits
per annual cohorts are available for 2019 and subsequent years: and

= The Risk adjustment calibration factors cannot be reproduced before 1 January 2022. The 2022 opening risk adjustment
factors are the first set of risk adjustment calibration factors available. Therefore, it is impracticable to apply the risk adjustment
before 2022. For business written in financial year 2021, 2020 and 2019, the risk adjustment modification and therefare the
MRA is expected to be adopted.

As a result, SRLHA is expecting to use the FVA for all policies incepting before 2019, MRA for policies incepting on or after 1
January 2019 and FRA for policies incepting after 1 January 2022. At the date of these financial statements, SRLHA remain in
the process of finalising the methodology that will be used to determine fair value.

The Company is currently finalising the adaption of AASB 17, however, the following impacts are expected:

s Animpact to total equity on transition to AASB 17, which is still being quantified as the Company finalises its transition fair
value methodology; and

s Animpact to the timing of profit recognition over the lifetime of the (re)insurance and retrocession contracts compared with
the current treatment under AASB 4 and AASB 1038. This will primarily be driven by the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss of the CSM, the exact impact of which will be known once the Company finalises its Coverage Unit treatment.

AASB 17 will significantly change how (re)insurance contracts and retrocession contracts are presented and disclosed in
SRLHA's financial statements. Under IFRS 17:

= Portfolios of {rejinsurance contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, and portfolios of retrocession contracts that
are assets and those that are liabilities, are presented separately in the statement of financial position. All rights and
obligations arising from a portfolio of contracts will be presented on a net basis;

= Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and OCl are disaggregated into: (a) an insurance service result,
comprising insurance revenue and insurance service expenses; and {b) insurance finance income or expenses. Amounts from
retrocession contracts will be presented separately; and

= Extensive new disclosures are required about amounts recognised in the financial statements, including detailed
reconciliations of contracts, effects of newly recognised contracts and information on the expected CSM emergence pattern,
as well as significant judgments made when applying AASB 17. These disclosures will generally be at a more granular level
than under AASB 4 and AASB 1038.

AASE 9 Financial instruments

Financial asset classification

The classification of financial assets under AASB 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flows characteristics. AASB 9 includes three principal measurement categories for financial
assets, measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

AASB 9 is expected to affect the classification and measurement of financial assets held at 1 January 2023 as follows:

s Debtinvestments that are classified as available-far-sale and measured at FVTPL under AASB 139 are expected to be
classified and measured at FVOCI:

= Loans and cash equivalents measured at FVTPL under AASB 1389 are expected to be classified and measured at amortised
cost; and

= Equity investments will continue to be measured at FVTPL.

The majority of SRLHA's financial assets are measured at fair value both before and after transition to AASB 9. SRLHA's total

equity is only expected to be materially impacted to the extent of any reclassification between amortised cost and fair value
measurement categories.
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The impact of these changes is preliminary as not all the transition work has been finalised.

Financial asset impairment
AASB 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in AASB 138 with a forward-looking Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

This will require considerable judgement about how changes in economic factors affect ECL, which will be determined on a
probability-weighted basis.

The new impairment madel will apply to SRLHA's financial assets measured at amaortised cost and debt instruments at FVOCL
AASB 9 requires a loss allowance to be recognised at an amount equal to either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL.

SRLHA's debt securities, cash equivalents and loans have been determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, which
the Group considers to be the case when the security's credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of
investment grade' and as a result it is expecled that SRLHA will measure loss allowances on these securities at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e.
the difference between the cash flow due to SRLHA in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that SRLHA expects to
receive).

The key inputs intc the measurement of ECL are: probability of default {PD); likely loss if there is a default (LGD); and expected
exposure in the event of a default (EAD).

The Company currently is finalising the adoption of AASB 9. however, it is expected that total equity will only be impacted to the
extent of any ECL allowance on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The impact of these changes on transition to AASB
9 is being quantified as part of the transition wark currently in progress.

The current assessment of the transition impacts on adoption of AASB 17 and AASB 9 is preliminary as not all the transition
work has been linalised. The actual impact of adopting AASB 17 and AASB9 on 1 January 2023 and 20272 may change
because:

s SRLHA is continuing to refine the new accounting processes and internal controls required for applying AASB 17 and 9;

» Although parallel runs were carried outin 2022 and user acceptance testing during beginning of 2023, the new systems and
associated controls in place have not been operated for a mare extended period. SRLHA has not finalised the testing and
assessment of controls over its new | T systems and changes to its governance framework; and

= The new accounting policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation technigues employed are subject to change until
SRLHA finalises its first financial statements that include the date of initial application.

2. Critical accounting judgements and estimates

Ihe Company makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. These judgements are
based on factors such as historical experience and expectalions of future trends and events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, Fstimates and assumptions are continually evaluated.

The areas where critical accounting judgements and estimates are applied are noted below.

Liabilities for life insurance contracts

Liabilities for life insurance contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods, which are expected to give
approximately the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract. The computations are made by
suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial methaods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles. The
methodology takes inte account the risks and uncertainties of the particular classes of life insurance business written.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities are:

» Data supplied by ceding companies in relation to the underlying policies being reinsured:

Historic and expected future mortality and morbidity experience;

Discontinuance experience, which affects the Company’s ability to recover acquisition costs over the lives of the contracts;
The cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts, and

The discount rate applied to calculate the present value of future benefits.
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In addition, factors such as regulation, inflation, taxes, investment market conditions and general economic conditions affect the
assumptions selected in the calculation of these liabilities. Specific details of actuarial methods and assumptions are set outin
note 3.

Retrocessionaires share of life insurance contract liabilities are also computed using the above methods.

Premium receivable from life insurance contracts

Premiums for inwards reinsurance business include estimates for renewal premiums that are based on historical information, the
active status of the policy, the sum assured and the premium renewal date, Fstimates are required as the amount of reinsurance
is dependent an the underlying contract between the cedant and their policyholder and there is typically a delay in the transfer
of this information to the reinsurer. Subsequent premium receipts may be less than, or greater than, the estimates recorded at
year-end date. The estimation process is periodically reviewed, including comparison of estimates to subsequent receipts, to
ensure that it continues to provide a reasonable basis.

Deferred tax asset

A deferred tax asset has been booked in respect of prior year losses. The recoverability of these losses has been assessed in the
context of AASB 112 Income Taxes. It has been determined that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Provisions

In the process of determining a provision, significant judgement is applied in determining the best estimate based on all available
information, facts and circumstances. The nature of provisions is such, that as further information comes to light. the ultimate
outcome could be significantly different to the number provided.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company holds infrastructure loans, which are valued by external managers using discounted cash flow models that are
validated by the Swiss Re Group. Discount rates and market credit spreads are the two main inputs to the model. To define the
appropriate credit spread levels, external managers consider a range of elements including pricing of recent completed
transactions, feedback from borrowers and sponsors, and public bond market pricing.

Impact of COVID-19

COVID-19 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020. For Australia and New Zealand. the
pandemic is expected to lead to indirect COVID-19 related claims (those sensitive to economic downturn) rather than direct
COVID-19 death claims. Since 30 June 2020, SRLHA has included modelled loadings for COVID-19 covering mortality,
morbidity (disability) and discontinuance stresses. This loading was applied on disability income incidence and termination to
the end of 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Company does not expect any material cost of the pandemic on future claims.

3. Actuarial methods and assumptions

An actuarial report on policy liabilities and prudential capital as at 31 December 2022 has been prepared by the Appointed
Actuary, Mr Michael Fowlds (FIAA, FFA). This report indicates that he is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data upon which
policy liabilities have been determined for the purposes of reporting under the Life Insurance Act 1995.

The policy liabilities in the Appointed Actuary’s repart have been calculated in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS 340
Valuation of Policy Liabilities issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority,

Actuarial methods

Policy liabilities in these financial statements have been determined in accordance with applicable accounting standards and in
accordance with relevant actuarial and Prudential Standards. Policy liabilities have been calculated in a way which allows for the
systematic release of planned margins as services are provided to policyholders and premiums received.

Life insurance contract liabilities are recorded using a methodology referred to as Margin on Services (MoS). Under MoS the
excess of premium received over expected claims and expenses (“the margin”) is recognised over the life of the contractin a
manner that includes the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (“the service”). The movement in life insurance contract
liabilities recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes the planned release of this margin.

Life investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value (refer to note 1.

Methods adopted for each of the major product groups:
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Product Group: Method:

Traditional non-participating life and disability business; Projection method, using cash flows from policy data whare provided
Single premium business with income benefits; and applying results to the total product group

Medical expenses; and Term insurance

Group life and salary continuance insurance Accumulation method

Conventional whale of life and endowment business: and Projection method, using cash flows for all individual policies

Single premium business with lump-sum benefits

Annuities Projection method, using present value of future payments and
) premiums due

Where contracts can be unbundled and a separate financial instrument element can be identified. this component is valued as a
life investment contract.

Valuation assumptions

Discount rates
Risk free rate of return, gross basis: this has been based on using the Commonwealth Government bond yield curve as at 30
December 2022. For Australian liabilities this was 3.21% to 4.40% p.a. (2021: 0.13% to 2.37% p.a.) nel of investment

management expenses and for New Zealand liabilities this was 4.37% to 4.89% p.a. {2021: 1.37% to 2.87% p.a.) net of
investment management expenses.

Gross of tax rates are used for:
— Australian products where the risk component of premium is taxed
— New Zealand products

Net of tax rates are used for all other products.

Investment expenses

Future investment management expenses are based on the rates agreed with the investment manager, which vary by class of
asset and average 0.12% of assets (2021: 0.12%).

Future maintenance expenses
Allowance for future maintenance expenses has been made on the basis that expense loadings (before future inflation impacts)

cover maintenance expenses. Expense loadings vary according to product type and are expressed as a % of annual premium or
claim payments.

Range of expense loadings:
Premium driven expenses: 0.4% to 7.4% (2021: 0.4% to 7.4%).
Claim driven expenses: 1.9% (2021: 1.9%).

Mortality and Morbidity
Martality and marbidity rates for risk products which vary by sex, age, smoking status and occupation have been based on the

Company's own experience and relevant industry studies. The range of rates used in the current year are:

Mortality

Risk products: 2022: 79%-132% of FSC 2012m for traditional and retail lump sum products.
100%-145% of ALT90-92 for other non-traditional products.
NZ in-force transactions: 46%-55% of NZ97 Select table 82%-120% of FSC 04-08.
Experience based factors are applied for gender, smoker status. sum insured and cedant specific experience

2021: 79%-132% of FSC 2012m for traditional and retail lump sum products.

100%-145% of ALT90-92 for other non-traditional products.

NZ in-force transactions: 46%-55% of NZ97 Select table 82%-120% of FSC 04-08.

Experience based factors are applied for gender, smoker status. sum insured and cedant specific experience

Annuitants: 2022:81%-96 % ALT 2015-17 (2021: 81% - 96 % ALT 2015 -17).
Adjustments for mortality improvements in line with company experience studies,
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Morbidity (Disability)

Incidence: 2022: Two tables are used across the portfolio - ADI 14-18 and IAD 89-93.
Arange of experience based factors is applied for gender, smoking status, occupation and sum insured.

20217: Three tables were used across the portfolio - ADI 14-18, IAD 89-93 and AD| 07 -11.
Avrange of experience based factors is applied for gender, smoking status. occupation , cause of claim and sum
insured.

Termination: 2022 Two tables are used across the portfolio - ADI 14-18 and a cedant supplied table for one block of business
A range of experience based factors 1s applied for claim duration.

2021 Three tables were used across the portfalio - AD| 14-18, ADI 07and a cedant supplied table for one hlock
of business - A range of experience based factors is applied for claim duration and cause of claim.

Morbidity (Total and Permanent Disability (TPD)/Traumna)

2022: 104%- 260% of FSC 2012 TPD table.

100% -151% of FSC 2012 Trauma table.

NZ in-force transactions 150% -194% of FSC 04-08 TPD table.
101% -114% of FSC 04-08 Trauma table.

Tables supplied by the cedant are used for some business.

2021:100% -151% of FSC 2012 Trauma table.
NZ in-torce transactions 150% -194% of FSC 04-08 TPD table.
101% -114% of FSC 04-08 Trauma table.
Experience based factors are applied for age, gender, sum insured, smoker status and cedant specific
experience.

Appropriate base tables are chosen for the type of product written. Investigations into the actual experience of the Company
over the preceding b years are performed annually, and the results of these investigations are considered in determining
adjustments to the base tables to reflect best estimate experience.

Discontinuance rates
Future rates of discontinuance which vary by product type are assumed to be in the order of:
Range of rates: 1% - 95.2% (2021: 1% - 95.2%).

Investigations into the actual experience of the Company over the preceding 5 years are performed annually and used to
determine the appropriate discontinuance rate.

Inflation rates for Annuities and Disability Income

The inflation rates for projecting annuity business is 2.6% at 31 December 2022 (2021: 1.6%).

The claims escalation rate for disability income payments post-disablement are derived based on current inflation rates, the
outlook for inflation rate over the term of the liabilities and market implied inflation rates relative to the assumed earning rates.

Allowance for Disability Income escalation rate:
— Australia and New Zealand Retail Disability 1.8% - 2.6% (2021: 1.7% - 2.2%).
— Australia and New Zealand Group Salary Continuance 1.8% - 3.0% (2021: 1.7% - 2.0%).

Profit Carriers
Claims are used as the profit carrier for all major product groups in order to achieve the systematic release of planned margins.

Surrender values

For reinsurance business, surrender value bases used by the cedants are assumed to apply to the future. For direct business, the
surrender value basis is consistent with the policy definition.

COVID-19 Assumptions

Mortality and Morbidity

Mortality

No material impact of additional martality was assumed.

Maorbidity (Disability)

Incidence

2022: No material impact of additional disability claims incidence was assumed.
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(2021 A multiplicative increase to incidence in addition to the standard incidence documented above, decreasing over time 10
the end of 2022 ranging between 3.75% and 22.5%).

Termination

2022 No material impact to disability claims termination was assumed.

(2021: A multiplicative decrease to termination rates applied to the standard termination rates documented above, with the
impact decreasing over time to the end of 2022 ranging between 2.6% and 20%).

Morbidity (total and permanent disability (TPD)/trauma)

No material impact of increases in lump sum morbidity was assumed.

Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2021 to 31 December 2022:
The table helow illustrates the impact of key assumption changes on profit margins and net of retrocession policy liabilities.

Profit Margins Palicy Liabilities
in thousands of Australian dollars Increase/(decrease) Incraase/(decreasa)
Assumption Change
Discount rates (220,926) (160.447)
Expense = -
Martality 23,953 (49.485)
Morbidity 6.655 -
Discontinuance rates 2,996 -
Model/Methodology/System change 77.330
Other! (53.880) e
Total assumption change (163,872) (209,932)
Experience ' (65,407) 13,187
Total effect of changes (229,279) (196,745)
Amaunt at 31 December 2021 981,805 1,049,114
Amount reported at 31 December 2022 under old assumptions 752,526 852,369

1 2022 Otherincludes (89,624) impact of assumption changes for cedant recapture of business and 35,744 reflacting the settlement amount received fora
recapture of risk business during the year.

Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2020 to 31 December 2021: The table below illustrates the
impact of key assumption changes on profit margins and policy liabilities.

Profit Margins Folicy Liabiities
in thousands of Australian dollars Increase/loecrease) Increase/{decrease)
Assumption Change
Discount rates (118,682) (66,200)
Expense (132,242) -
Mortality 5,308 -
Morbidity (50,388) -
Discontinuance rates’ (13,204) -
Model/Methodology/System change (28,544) -
Other? (45.625) 1.233
Total assumption change : (383,275) (64,967)
Experience 70,873 (36.943)
Total effect of changes (312,402) (101,910)
Amount at 31 December 2020 1,294,207 1,151,024
Amount reported at 31 December 2021 under new assumptions 981,805 1,049,114

¢ 9021 discontinuance rates impact includes $5,007 profit margin impact related to COVID-1 9 assumption
7 2027 Other policy liability impact is from a change in annuity payment inflation assumptian

The Company considered the impact of the lapse experience arising from its direct and reinsurance business and based upon
actual experience to date and has reflected this in the insurance valuation as at 31 December 2022. No allowance has been
made for future changes in lapse experience.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company conducts sensitivity analyses to quantify the exposure to risk of changes in the key underlying variables such as
discount rate, mortality and morbidity. The valuations included in the reported results and the Company’s best estimate of future
performance are calculated using certain assumptions about these variables. The movement in any key variable will impact the
performance and net assets of the Company and as such represents a risk.
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Variglite

ImMpACt of mevement i underliying varable:

Disgount rate:

Adetreass in the discount rate will increase the pdlicy liability, The Gverall impaét on grofit and shareholders equity
depends onthe impact.on agsets ard liabilities ‘combined.

Inflatian rate

Aghange in inflation rate will change the futire cashfiows for premiums, clairs and-expenses where those
cashfiows increase in fine with anindlation fndex or depend on the géneral level of inflation.

An increasein inﬁation'expep_tai_ions will increase premium incalrie where sums insured are.indexed.ta CFl or angther
measure. Expected future claims will increase in line with the increased sums Insured, Operating éxpenses miay also.
te projected to increase,

Mortality rates .-A:s::stai'ried-change'in.morta_!_ity-rat_es_ wautd-resultin an update of the bestestimate mortality assumptiong.

An increass in best estimate mottality assumiptions will increase the claim costs. To the extent thatfuture proiit
can absorb the sifect of Aigher claims cost, changes-in assumption have little impact on the policy Hakility. If the.
increased claifns.costis higher than the future profit can absorb, the-excess will increase the palicy fability-and
reduce profit, '

“Adecrease 1 thie. best estimate mortality fates.will reduce claim costs. To the extent that prior loss fecagnition exists,

the lower:clairms cost will reverse thatloss, redueing pdlicy liability and increasing profit. Redlction in claims cost

-ahove the armount of prior 1oss facogniiion will be smoathed over the futlie and wilf not.chang@ thé palicy iability ar

profit.

TPD & trauma incidence

A sustained-change In.TRD and Trauma Incidence fates will résult in an update ot the best sstimate morbidity

assumptions.

An increase.in best esttmate mor[_:iditv'incidence_as:sump;io'ns'__will incigase the claim casts. To the extent that futuse

profitden absarb the effect of hig her-claims.cost, changes in assumption have little impaét 6n the pplicy kiability. I

the increased claims.costis higher than the future-profit can.absarb; 'the-excess-w'i!l'increase.th_g-_p;')li_cy_ liabitity dnd
reduce profit.

Adecraase in the best estimate morbidity rates will redlcé claifn costs. To the-exient that prior loss
recognition exists; the lower élaims cost.will reverse thatloss, reducing policy liabitity and increasing profit,
Fediction inclaims cost abdve the dmount of prior Ioss.rebqgnit‘i‘on will-be smeothed over the-future and will

notchange the policy hability or profit.

Disability claimis incidence

The cost of disability incorae claims depends on both the incidence:of policyholders becoming il and the
duration which they rematn il,

Asustained.chiange inincidence rates will resultin.an update of the best-estimate disability claims incidenice:
assumptions,

Anincreage in theintidence rated of duration would increase-claim costs. To the extent that Riture profit.can absdrb
ihe effect of higher-clalms cost, changes in assumption havedittle impact an the policy liability If the increased claimg
costis-higher than the futire profit can.absorb, the excess will increage the policy liability and reduce profif,

A decreasein théincidence rates or duration will reduce claif costs. Tothe extent that pribr loss recognition exists.
the lower.¢laims cost will fevérse that loss, reducing policydiability and'increasing profit. Reduction In claims cost
above the amaoutit of prior loss recagnition will be.smoothed over the fiuture and will not.change the policy Hability or
profit,

Disability claims termiriation .

A sustained change in'termination rates would result in an update-of the best estimate disakillity claims Brmination
assumptians.

An'increase in teimination ratés will reduce claims-costs. Forindivid val business, to the extent that prior ioss
recognition exists, the.lower future Claims costwill reverse that los. raducing policy fiatility and ihcreasin_g-p_r(_)_fi_t.
Reduction in'tlaims cost above the” amount of prior loss recognition will be smoothed over the futire and will not

-change the policy liability of profit. Palicy liahilities for group-salary continuance will redugs;

Discontinuance

A sustained-change in discontinuance rates would result in an Gpdate of the best estimate discontinuance

“Assurnptions.

.Chariges in discontinuance assump;iqns.w_i_f_l. have a smailimpact on gross policy lighilities driven by-tetail disability

products. A 10% reduction in lapse assumptions will increase the paticy liabilities for Australian retail fevel prémivm
disability income.and Australian retail level framiiicn lumpsum business and reduce the policy labilities for
Adstraliar retail stepped premium disability income business. This is.an overall reduction in profit. Anincrease in
lapse assumptions will reduce tha palicy liabilities for Australian retall ievel lump sum disability products and inciease
the poticy fiabilities for Austrafian stepped retail disability Incomé. This will result.in lower profit.
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Incurred Butnot reported  Sustained delays in the reporting pattern of claims wauld result in a slowing of clajms development factors. Increases
claims in:claims incidence rates would result in highe! |BRR- o ’

Changesin IB_NF.-'(_ claims deveTop'nment._factdrs would contribute directl to changes in the policy liability, Slowing the-
developmentfactors would incréase the policy liability, resuliinig in lower profit.’ i i

Dperating axpenses Asustained changs in operating expenses refative to pélicy vilumeés wauld resultin an-update of the best estimate
operating:expense assumptions. '

An increasd in best astimate expensé assumplions will increase the projectad expense cost. To Lhe extent that future
pieofit can absorb.tha.effect.of higher expense cost, chaniges in-assumption-have fitte impact on the policy liabifity. If
the increased-expense eost ishigher than the futlire profit can absorb, the excess will increase the policy Tanility aid,
reduce -grofit.

. The table bielow illustrates how permanent changes in key variables would impact the repdrted Statement _ofIFE_'nanc_‘sa] Positicrn of
the Company thiough thervalue of its. policyholder iabilities and through changed-valuation-assurpiions.

i thausanda of Austrahdn dollars Change in Variagle- Impact on Policyhglder. Ligbifities. Impact upon Profitand Eguityaftor Tax
2022 Gross of Net of Gross of Netof
' reinsurance “peinsurance. reigsurance reinsurance
Discount rate +50bp (81,762) {26.966), 45,9253 {15,533)
500 88,651 27,464, - (50,876} 16,603
Inflationrate +50bp 58,242 11,115) {38270} 21,6489
-50bp 47.272) 1.076 32,629 {20,274)
Mortality rates. +10% 1,232 1.332 . {oan 1939
_ A 0% B . - B
TP and traumaincidence +10% 20,747, 20,747 {14523} {14,523)
-{0% - - - -
Disabiity ¢laims incidends +10% 164,715 - {115,803} 41,880
-10% (38.867) - 62.207 {26,650)
Disabifity claims termination +10%: {127.867; - 89,467 {38.959)
-10% 277,372 (194.876) 72,467 .
Discontinuance +10% 18,165 - (12.888) 1,354
-10% 4845 9,368 {3.391) 7,904]
Incurrad bit unfeported claims +10%. 1658.459 98,678 117,267} {57,337}
0% 1152489 (98.575) 117,261 57,337
Operating expenses +10% 8,505 - {5.885) 2.376
-10% {7021} - 5545, {2,376}
i thousands ol Australiandoliars | Changy i4 Variable |mpacl on Polizyholdor Liabilitics ‘jrepact upian Profiy and Eguity alter Tax
20213 Gross of Net of Gross of Met of
reinsurance rainsirance reinsurance reinsurance
Distount rate +50bp (128,217} (42.448) 75745 (18,208}
-50hp 149,528 54,453 {90,664 13,151
Inflation rate +B0% (21.444) (2:086) 15,440 1,502
~50% 24786 1,991 {17.846) o 1483y
“Morality ratés +10% - - - -
) 0% ; . - .
TPD atid rauma incidence +10% 1544 1,544 (1,081 11081
“10% - - - -
Disability claims ingidence +10% 178,221 - {124,838} 52,213
0% {114,978} - “80,569. {33,236)
Disability.claims termination +10%: {182.054) - 114,154 {47 530
0% 473849 - (227.087). g1.268
Discontinuance +10% 21,296 - (14.818) 6,237
-10% 11,148} 6,679 812 {6,871
ingurred but unfepgrted claims: F10% 131,542  74.858 (92.482) {41.328)
-10% {1771,604) {66.297) 85,625 35,747
Oparating expenses +10% 10769 147 {7.557) 2,923
-10% {10.769} (117} 7501 (2,973)
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In addition to the ahove sensitivity, financial performance is subject to uncertain timing of future cash flows. The Company writes
non-participating term life and disability contracts. The benefits payable under these contracts are paid on the occurrence of an
event, such as the death or disability of the insured or the maturity of the policy term, and are not at the discretion of the issuer
once the conditions have been met. The claim amount is defined by the contract and is not subject to the performance of
underlying assets.

Liabilities are estimated based on current assumptions. The timing and amount of the cash flow may be affected by the following:
mortality and morbidity experience, inflation, discontinuance rates, and maintenance expenses incurred.

4. Components of loss

inthousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Components of loss related to movement in contracts:
Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 38.296 67585
Difference between actual and assumad experience (47,563) (82,577)
Capitalisation of expected future gains/{losses) 48,088 {57,083)
Retrocession (loss) / recovery relating to loss recognition (45,188) 58,646
(6,365) (13,429)
Other components:
Investment losses on assets in excess of palicy liabilities (35.976) (6.178)
Profit from Shareholders Fund 8 -
Net loss after tax (42,333) (19,607)

5. Investment loss

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Trust distributions - 757
Interest on debt securities and deposits 58,968 56,095
Net realised loss {28,725) {18.898)
Net unrealised loss (81.678) (46.779)
Total investment loss (51,435) (8,825)

6. Other revenue

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Commission income from retrocession 379.403 275,249
Other retrocession commissions and expenses 24,977 33.213
Recapture Income 35,415 =
Other 2,858 690
Total other revenue 442,653 309,152

7. Other expenses

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Life insurance contract liabilities

Policy acquisition expenses

Commission expense 85,238 95,317

Operating expenses 37766 12,405
Policy maintenance expenses

Commission expense 483,398 369,687

Operating expenses 45,158 79.974
Investment management expenses 1,935 2,148
Remediation expenses 3.174 67750
Other 11.673 2,491
Total other expenses 668,342 629,772
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8. Auditor’s remuneration

Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditor of the Company for:

in thousands of Australian dollars

2022 2021
Audit of the financial statements 611 579
Regulatory assurance services 125 118
Other assurance services 100 -
Other services 112 -
Total auditor's remuneration 948 698

9. Income tax

The Company is part of a tax consolidated group, of which Swiss Re Australia Ltd is the head entity. The Statement of Financial
Position recognises tax assets and liahilities of the Company on a stand-alone basis and these are settled in accordance with the

funding agreement betwaen the entities in the Group.

Income tax benefit has been determined in accordance with the taxes applicable to each product. In Australia, the risk

component of ardinary life and disability business and the fee income from savings type products is generally subject to tax at

30% (2021: 30%), while a concessional rate of 15% (2021: 16%) applies to complying superannuation business.

In New Zealand, business is subject to tax in accordance with the Income Tax Act 2007 at a rale of 28% (2021: 28%).

The movements in the current tax assets and liabilities during the period and the composition of the total income tax benefit are

as follows:

in thausands of Australian dollars

2022 2021

Income tax benefit
Current tax
Current tax on losses for the year (11,118) (8.069)
Total current tax expense (11,118) (8,069)
Deferred income tax

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax assets {31,118) 10,9856

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities 7.947 207
Utilisation of prior year losses (105,696) (150,464)
Adjustments to deferred tax for prior periods {1.730) (1.364)
Total deferred tax expense (130,595) (5,636)
Income tax expense (141,713) (13,705)
Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
Profit/(lass) from operations before income tax expense 99,380 (6.8202)
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2021: 30%) (29.814) 1.771
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/{taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Tax offset for franked dividends 275 175
Non-assessable disability expense (114,553) (17,452)
Difference in New Zealand 1ax rate 231 584
Foreign exchange adjustment B8 327
Adjustments for deferred tax of prior periods {1.730) (1.364)
Other 3,790 2,264
Income tax expense (141,713) (13,705)
Unrecognised temporary differences
Temporary differences relating to overseas operations for which deferred tax liabilities have nat been
recognised:
Foreign currency translation 10,302 11,768
Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities relating to the above temporary differences 3.091 3,630
Analysis of deferred tax asset
Reinsurance balances 51,790 64,268
Tax losses 58,814 166,243
Cther provisions 2,873 2931
Closing deferred tax asset’ 113,277 251,822
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Income Tax _(cont:ir;ued}

inthousands of Avistralian doflars . 20_2__2 2021

Deferred tax asset

Opening balance 261,822 ) 257,728
Reinsufance balances: {12.478) 15,851
Tax Ipsses {107,429y {15:464}
Other pravisions {18.638} {6.293)
Closing deferred tax asset 113,277 113,277
Deferred tax assats expected'to bg recovered within ©2° months 34,783 43,807
Deferred tax assets expected toibe racoverad after 12 months ) ) 78,494 208,015

Analysis of deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liahility oh New Zealand acquisition costs? . 2.297 10,677

Closing deferred tax liability' 2,287 10,577

Deferred tax liability

Opening balance 10677 10,742
Foreign-exchange adjustiment ©{333) ' 72
Decrease of New Zealand acquisition costs {7947 {207).
Clasing deferred tax liability ) 2,297 10,677
Defeifed tax liabilities expedted to be settled within 12 months 115 528
‘Deferred tax liabilities Bipected to:be settled after 12:manths 2182 10048

‘Current income tax |iability

Opening balance {4.736} {1.608)
Foreign axchange adjustment ' {330} {28)
Luirent corfiponent of iIncome tax-expense. ) f11.518), {8,068)
income tax paymerits 13.856 4,872
Tax refunds received during the current vear - B {7)
Closing current incéme tax liability ) (2,328) (4.736)
Currentincome tax liability expected to he settled within 12 fonths _ {2,328) {4,7386)

! The closing bdlances are disclosed as a separate defdtied tax asset and deferred 1ax liab#ity on the Statement of 'Finan'cia[_Positi_on to reflect jurisdictiong
allocation,, N . o
2 The deferred tax liability reflects the temporary difference associated withthe timing of the.deduciion for acquisition-casts ih New Zealand.
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10. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Equities held indirectly by unit trusts {level 1) 18,393 19,954
Debt securities:

Gavernment (level 1) 1,260,760 1,049,163

Private sector (level 2) 284,815 534,368

Private sector (level 3) ' 174,877 192,038
Total debt securities 1,720,442 1,775,569
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,738,835 1,795,523
Balance maturing within 12 months 790,156 756,723

Credit ratings of financial assets are disclosed in Note 22.

Financial assets are designated as fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of the Company's investment assets are
classified as:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reparting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of ohservable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Unit trust and national government debt securities have fair values that meet the definition of level 1. Private sector debt
securities have fair values that meet the definition of level 2 and 3.

Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

s The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments where available

= The use of redemption values for investments in other unlisted unit trusts as reported by the investment manager of such
trusts

s The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques.

These include use of recent arm’s length market transaction, historical transaction values, reference to the current fair value of a
substantially similar other instrument that provide a reliable estimate of prices obtained in active market transactions.

The Company has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in the current reporting period. There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. The Company’s policy is to

recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 3 is comprised of infrastructure loans wherein fair value is determined using discounted cash flow models with valuation
spreads as the main unchservable input.

L evel 3 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss movement analysis

in thousands of Australian dollars , 2022 2021
As at 1 January 192,038 157,071
Acquisition of investments - 40,400
Unrealised losses recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income (17.161) (6,433)
As at 31 December 174,877 192,038

Sensitivity of recurring level 3 measurements to changes in unobservable inputs
The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s infrastructure loans is valuation spread.
A significant increase/(decrease) in this inputin isolation would result in significantly lower/(nigher) fair value measurement.
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Disclosures about the temporary exemption from AASE 9

The Company applies the temporary exemption from AASB 9 Financial instruments, as defined in the amendment “Applying
AASB 9 Financial Instruments with AASB 4 Insurance Contracts — AASB 4 amendments” issued by the AASB in September
2016. This amendment allows an entity to defer the implementation of AASB 9 if its activities are predominantly connected with
insurance.

As required by the application of this exemption, the table below presents an analysis of the fair value of the classes of financial
assets as at the end of the reparting period, as well as the change in fair value during the reporting period. The financial asset
classes are divided into three categories:

n Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) - Amortised Cost: assets of which cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest on an outstanding principal amount. but are not meeting the definition of held for trading in AASE 9: or
are not managed on a fair value basis:

m SPPI-FVOCI: assets of which cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on an outstanding principal
amount, that follow the fair value option at initial recognition and are carried at FVOCI: and

m Other - FVTPL: assets that follow the fair value option at initial recognition and are carried at FVTPL

Fair values as of 31 December 2022
in thousands of Australian dollars

. . SPPI- SPPI - FVOCI Other - FVTPL  Total Fair Value Amount

Financial assets .
Amortised Cost
Fixed income securities 1,545,564 - 1,545,664
Loans 174,877 - = 174,877
Equities held indirectly by unit trusts - - 18,393 18,393
Irwegtmcm income accrued and 12,609 . N 12,509
receivable
Cash and cash equivalents 57.863 5 - 57,863
Total financial assets 245,249 1,545,564 18,393 1,809,206
Fair values as of 31 December 2021
in thousands of Australian dollars
Financial assets SPPI- SPPI - FVOCI Other- FVTPL Total Fair Value Amount
Amortised Cost
Fixed income securities = 1,583,531 - 1,683,531
Loans 192.038 - - 192,038
Equities held indirectly by unit trusts - - 19,954 19,954
Investment income accrued and 15,126 - - 15,125
receivable
Cash and cash equivalents 132,369 E - 132,369
Total financial assets 339,532 1,683,531 19,954 1.943,017
Change in fair value during the reporting period
Financial assets SPPI - Amortised SPPI - FVOCI Other - FVTPL Total Fair Value Amount
Cost

Fixed income securities - (113.022) (113,022)
Loans - - > -
Equities held indirectly by unit trusts - - 2,619 2,619
Total financial assets - (113,022) 2,619 (110,403)
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11. Trade and other receivables

There are no trade and ather receivables at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil) that have been assessed as impaired.

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Outstanding premiums 483,062 511.857
Amounts due from related parties 3,386 10,710
Amounts due from retrocessionaires - ultimate controlling entity 53,760 18,395
Investment income accrued and receivable 12,609 15,125
Other debtors 178,012 159,761
Total trade and other receivables 736,728 715,848
Balance expected to be received within 12 months 736,728 715,848

12. Capitalised software

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Opening balance at 1 January 1,747 1618
Capitalisation during the year 113 128
Amortisation during the year (279) -
Closing balance at 31 December 1,581 1.747

13. Trade and other payables

in thousands of Austrabian dollars 2022 202
Amounts due to cedants, retracessionaires and third parties 340121 281,695
Claims payable 3,348 5,336
Amaounts due to retrocessionaires - related parties 51,766 33.032
Amounts due to related parties 22,374 30,243
Investment related payables 121 80
QOther creditors 6,206 9,205
Total trade and other payables 423,936 359,591
Balance expected to be settled within 12 months 423,936 359,591

14. Offsetting

The Company has entered into retrocession agreements, and some of these agreements entitle the counterparties to offset
balances due and settle on a net basis. The following table lists out balances offset on the Statement of Financial Position:

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Balances setoff

Premiums ceded under retrocession (306.274) (302.130)
Claims and other technical expenses ceded under retrocession 117,618 140,734
Other retrocession commissions and expenses 135,092 97,935
Total amounts due to retrocessionaires (52,664) (63,461)

15. Provisions

The table below includes changes to the provision accounted during the reporting period.

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Opening balance 71,038 92.627
Increase in provision 3.174 67,750
Utilisation of provision (65.312) (89,339)
Closing balance 8,900 71,038
Balance expected to be settled within 12 months 8,900 71,038
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The provision of $8.9 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: $71.0 million) represents management’s best estimate of the cost
of remediating affected policyholders and the cost of the remediation program to address the past conduct of business partners
who distributed and administered life insurance products issued by the Company and is based on information available at the

date of these financial statements.

The remediation program was completed in March 2022, payments to continue during 2023.

16. Life insurance contract liabilities assumed

16 (a) Reconciliation of movements in life insurance contract liabilities assumed

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Life insurance contract liabilities assumed

Opening balance at 1 January (2,182,859) (2,329,642)
Decrease reflected in the statement of comprehensive income 604,181 141,535
Foreign exchange adjustment (8.848) 5,248
Closing balance at 31 December (1,587,524) (2,182,859)
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract liabilities

Opening balance at 1 January 1,218,046 1,275,298
Decrease reflected in the statement of comprehensive income {425,075) (52,179)
Annuity reserves recapture value - z
Foreign exchange adjustment 13.568 (65.073)
Closing balance at 31 December 806,539 1,218,046
Net life insurance contract liabilities at 31 December (780,985) (964,813)
16 (b) Components of net life insurance contract liabilities

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Future policy benefits (5,180,363) (6,238.167)
Future expenses {3.061,433) (3.570.235)
Planned margins of future revenues over expenses (752.526) (981.805)
Future revenues 8,213,337 9,825,394
Total net life insurance contract liabilities (780,985) (964,813)
Net life insurance contract liabilities to be realised within 12 months (294,719) (369,666)
17. Life investment contract liabilities assumed

Reconciliation of movements in life investment contract liabilities assumed

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Life investment contract liabilities assumed

Opening balance at 1 January (84,301) (96.680)
Decrease reflected in the statement of comprehensive income 12,917 12,379
Closing balance at 31 December (71,384) (84,301)
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18. Capital adequacy

tUnder the Life insurance Act 1895 {the L.ife Act! life insurers are requred to hold reserves in excess of policy liabiii_fies,- These
‘atlditiona! réserves aie necessary to support the lifeinsdrer’s ¢apital requirements undarits business plan and to providea buffer

‘against adverse experience iri mahaging long t&rm risks. APRA fssued Life Prudential Standard (LPS) 110 "Capital Adequacyfor
determining the level-of capital reserves,, | PS- 10 preseribes the.minimum capital reguirement for each fund and the minimurn.
level of-assets required to be held in each fund, The figures in the table below regresent the satio for each fund of the assets
available for capital over the minimum regufatory capital requirement.

2022
in thoiszands.af Austr:jlian dollars Statutory Fund. Nt Stawutary Fund Mn.d Sharziholdars Furid Total
et assets 132;802 1,224,499 1063 1358464
Regulatory-adjustment.appliedin ¢aloulation of tier 1 capital 192.523) (319,887) - (412,510)
Tist 1 capitals.
Common equity fier 1 capital 40,369 820,512 1,062 870,944
Additional tier 1-.capital - 75,000 - 75.000
Capital base 40,389 204,512 1,063 945,944

Prescribed capital athount comprises:

tnsurance risk 12,847 250,350 - 263,297
‘Asset risk o 553 90,154 1 90,708
Assetconcentration risk - 143,300 - 143,300
Operativnal risk _ _ ' ' 3577 35,233 - 38,810
Aggregation benafit {431 {57.960) - {58,351}
Combinéd-scenanc adiustment 5824 102,221 - 108,045
Prescribed capital amount 22,470 -5G3,298 -1 585,769
Capitalin ekcess of prescribed capital amaunt 17.89% 941,214 1.062: A601756
Capital adeguacy multiple (%1 178% 160% 74.410%. ) 181%

T ip adcilion pthe pfescribed capital smount coveragaabove, SRLHA halds Piliar 2 capltal caverage par APRA's DI Supervisaey Adjustment.
1rigig-aré no COVID-18 restrlctans or olher adjusiment raquised by APHA other than tha Dl one ndied.

2021
inthpusandd of Australian dallars StawtoryFind Mot Statrory Fund Me2  Shateholders Fund Tatal
Net.asgsets _ 12,626 1,279,672 1,058 1,402,253
Regulatory adjustment applied in‘calculation of tief 1 capital (77.239) {361,957 - {469,196)
Tiet 1 capitali
Comman equjty fier 1 capital 44,387 812.61b 1.055 858,057
Additional tier 1 capital - -75.000 - 75,000
Capital base 44,387 887615 1,055 933,057

-Prescribed capital amount comipriges:

insurance risk. 17.838 236787 - 254,695
Assatrisk 381 97,656 1 . 97.937
Asset concentration risk - 172378, S - 172778
‘Dperational risk 3414 36.642 - 38,056
Agaregation benefit £301) {80.798} - {61,099}
Combined scenario adjustierit ) 7679 76,912 .. 84,531
Prescribed capital amount 29,011 558,844 1 587,856
Capita! in excess of prascribed capital amaunt 16:376 . 328.772 1,064 345,201
Capital-adeguacy muitiple {%)? 153% 168% 73,850% ) 168%

1 |p sddinon toithe oresgribed tapital amount.coverage ghave, SRLHA holds Pillas 2.capital coverage per APRA's D Supervisory Adjustment.
Taere arena COVID:1Y restrigtions of otherad:ustmisnt required y APRA otherthan tha D! one noted.
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19. Equity

in thousands of Australian daollars 2022 2021
Share capital

35.286.208 ordinary shares (2021: 35.296,208)" 905,000 905.000
75.000 redeesmable preference shares (2021: 75,000)2 75.000 75.000
Total Share capital " 980.000 980,000

Other reserves
Contributed capital without share issue 156.000 156,000

Total Contributed equity 1,136.000 1,136.000

' Facevalue pershare $25.64
? Facevalue per preference share $1.000

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to
the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. This is subject to the prior entitlements of the redeemable preference
shares.

All authorised shares have been issued. The redeemable preference shares have no voling rights, no fixed dividend entitiement
and do not have a fixed redemption date. There were no issuances, redemptions or buybacks of redeemable preference shares
during 2022 (2021: nil).

During the year the Company did not issue any ordinary shares (2021 nil).

Contributed Capital
On 26 March 2020 Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd contributed $156.0 million to the Company. No shares were issued.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The maovement in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve during the vear, disclosed as "Exchange difference on translation of
foreign operations”, under the Statement of Comprehensive Income, represents the translation of the New Zealand branch
operations. No tax balances have been accounted for in relation to Foreign Currency Translation Reserve as set outin note 9.
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20. Segment information

Business segments

The Company operates in the two business segments 0

Disaggregated information by fund

f life and disability reinsurance and direct life and disability insurance.

2022

in thousands of Australian dollars Statulory Fund No.1  Statutory Fund No.2 Shareholders Fund Total
Net premium revenue from life insurance contracts 114,332 710,982 825,314
Investment loss (274) (561.161) - (51,435)
QOther revenue 3,134 439,508 11 442 653
Total revenue 117,192 1,099,329 11 1,216,532
Met claims from life insurance contracts (43,481) {697,362) (640,833)
Net expense (58,710) (419,608) . (476,319)
Net profit before tax 17,001 82,368 1 99,380
Net profit/(loss) after tax 11,266 (53,607) 8 (42,333)
Investment assets 68.280 1.6/0,bbb - 1,738,835
Other assets 25,408 582,975 1,066 909,449
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 7,250 799,289 - 806,539
Life insurance and investment contract liabilities assumed 59,933 (1,718,841) - {1,668,908)
Net policy liabilities from insurance contracts 67,183 {919,552) - (852,369)
Other liabilities (25,878) (402,680) (3) {428.561)
Provisions {2101} (6./99) - (8.900)
Net assets 132,892 1,224,499 1,063 1.358.454
Retained earnings 97,892 113,197 1,063 212,152
Foreign currency translation reserve = 10,302 - 10,302
Transfers in period = 5 - -
2021

in thausands of Australian daollars Statutory Fund No.1 Statutory Fund Mo.?  Sharenolders Fund Total
Net premium revenue from life insurance contracts 108,682 761,988 - 870,680
Investment loss (34) (8,791) (8,825)
Other revenue 3,151 306,001 309,152
Total revenue 111,799 1,059,208 - 1,171,007
Net claims from life insurance contracts (39,475) {609.397) - (648,872)
Net expense (85,943) (442,094) E (528.037)
Net profit/{loss) before tax (13,619) 7717 - (5.902)
Net loss after tax ' (9,658) (9.949) - (19,607)
Investment assets 97704 1,697,819 - 1,796.5623
Other assets 33,918 1.066,802 1,066 1,101,786
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 8,660 1,209,496 - 1,218,046
Life insurance and investment contract liahilities assumed 39,271 (2,306.431) (2,267,160}
Net policy liabilities from insurance contracts 47,821 (1,096,935) - (1,049,114)
Other liabilities (31.823) (343.070) (11) (374,904)
Pravisions (25,994} (45,044) - (71.038)
Net assets 121,626 1,279,572 1,055 1,402,253
Retained earnings 62,626 190,804 1,055 254,485
Foreign currency translation reserve - 11,768 - 11,768
Transfers in period 24,000 {24,000} - -

The following details show the number of statutory funds operated by the Company, the types of business writte

products within each statutory fund.

Statutory fund Type of business

Major products

n and the major

Statutory Fund No. 1

Non unit linked ordinary insurance business

Disability Income

Death, Total Permanent Disability, Trauma,

Statutary Fund No. 2
reinsurance business

Non unit linked ordinary and

Death, Total Permanent Disability, Trauma.

Disability Income
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21. Related party disclosures

Controlling entities

The immediate controlling entity is Swiss Re Australia Ltd (SRAUL). a company incorporated in Australia. The controlling entity
of SRAUL is Swiss Re Asia Holding Pte. Ltd, a company incorporated in Singapore. The ultimate controlling entity is

Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd, a company incorporated in Switzerland.

Related party transactions

During the year the Company conducted the following transactions, in its narmal course of business, with related parties, all of
whom are entities of the Swiss Re Group. The related party transactions have been disclosed on the basis of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements with the specific related party, this varies by arrangement. Balances relating to transactions with
related parties are summarised in the tables below:

in thousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Retrocession contracts with ultimate controlling entity - Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd.

Outwards reinsurance expense (418.100) (420.194)
Reinsurance recoveries and commissian income 584 896 627172
Movement in life insurance contract liabilities (674,675) {126,023)
Net reinsurance (expense)/recovery (407,879) 80,955

Retrocession contracts with other related parties — Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd.

Outwards reinsurance expense (571,010) {577.551)
Reinsurance recoveries and commission income 381.519 218,952
Movement in life insurance contract liabilities 164,254 71,471
Net reinsurance expense (25,237) (287,128)

Management and other expenses

Ultimate controlling entity — Swiss Re Ltd (7.496) {7.386)
Other related parties’ (51,442) (61,944)
Net management and other expenses (58,938) (69,340)

Investment management expense

Controlling entity (5,400) (2,288)
Net investment management expenses (5.400) (2,288)
Letter of credit fees (282) -

" The Company has no employees. Included in this amount is a costallocation for day to day operating activities provided by Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd.

The related party balances are disclosed in the related notes to the Statement of Financial Position.
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22 Risk management and financial instruments

Risk Management

The Company implements its risk management system as part of the global framework that governs risk management practices
throughout Swiss Re Group.

The Company’s Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for oversight over the operation of the Company, including its risk
management. It is supported in this by various key function-halders, including the Chief Financial Officer ANZ, Chief Risk Officer
ANZ, Compliance Officer and Appointed Actuary. The Board Risk Committee, appointed by the Board, is the main body charged
with oversight of the risk governance issues of the Company. Its responsibilities are established in the Board charter. The Board
of the Company has established the Location Management Team (LMT}. The LMT is responsible for overseeing and raising
awareness of risk management activities (including business continuity management) for all functional areas of Swiss Re ANZ
and providing management sign off on the risk management framework.

I'he Managing Direclor, supported by the Chief Risk Officer ANZ and LMT, are responsible for ensuring compliance with the Risk
Management Framewaork, as documented in the Risk Management Strategy approved by the Board of the Company. Risk
Management activities are complemented by Swiss Re's Group Internal Audit and Compliance units:
» Group Internal Audit performs independent, objective assessments of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
systems. It evaluates the execution of process within Swiss Re, including those within Risk Management.
» The Compliance function oversees Swiss Re's compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and the Code of Conduct.
It also assists the Group, Board, Group Executive Committee and other management bodies in identifying, mitigating and
managing compliance risks.

The financial condition and operating results of the Company are affected by a number of material risk categories including
insurance (or underwriting) risk, financial market risk, credit risk, operational risk and liquidity risk. These risks could have a
material impact, either financial or non-financial. on the Company or an the interest of its stakeholders. The Company’s policies
and procedures for managing these risks are set outin this note.

In accardance with Prudential Standard CPS 220 Risk Management issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Autharity
(APRA), the Board and senior management of the Company develop, implement and maintain a Risk Management Strategy
(RMS). It forms the core of the Company’s Risk Management Framework, which seeks to manage risks within the Board's risk
appetite, including a focus on potential adverse effects on the financial performance, capital and solvency of the Company. The
RMS formalises the Company’s approach lo the management of risk by selting out:

» A Risk Appetite Statement (RAS):

= A summary of the clear roles and responsibilities for the management of risk;

= The mechanisms by which the Company determines its risk appetite and considers and manages new risks:

= The methodelagy used to identify, assess and manage risks and;

s Reporting requiremnents for risk monitoring and the process for escalation where required.

The Board at least annually reviews and approves the RMS. Annually, the Board is required to report to APRA that adequate
strategies have been putin place to monitor those risks and that the Board has satisfied itself on compliance with the RMS by
submission of a Risk Management Declaration to APRA.

The Company has an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) that addresses the potential impact of all risk types
to capital and solvency. Under the ICAAP. the authority to hold this risk Is clearly delegated through the Board's RAS.

Risk appetite framework
In the context of business strategy and planning, the risk appetite statement facilitates discussions about where and how Swiss

Re should deploy its capital, liquidity and other resources under a risk/ return view, while the risk tolerance sets clear boundaries
to risk-taking.

Risk governance documentation

Swiss Re's risk management framework is set out in risk governance documentation at Group and legal entity level. Risk
governance is the subset of corporate governance that describes the risk management framework and documents risk
management practices. Group-level risk documents form the basis for all risk governance across Swiss Re. Additional risk
governance for legal entities, suchas the Risk Management Strategy and Risk Appetite Statement, is prepared as an addendum
to the Group or parent entity document.

Group risk governance documents are organised hierarchically across five levels, which are mirrored by equivalent documents at

legal entity (LE) level:
s SRL Bylaws and the charter for the Group Finance and Risk Committee outline the ultimate autharity for risk management,

Swiss Re Life &Health Australia Limited Annual Report 2022 3%



Financial Statements | Notes to the Financial Statements

assigning responsibilities to the Group Board of Directors and the Group Executive Committee.

= The Group Risk Policy is defined by the Group Board and articulates Swiss Re's risk appetite framewaork (risk appetite and
tolerance) as well as fundamental risk and capital structure principles.

= The Group Risk Management Standards outline how the Group organises and applies its risk management practices.

= Risk category standards describe how risk practices are implemented for a specific category.

= The lowest level comprises risk management methodology and process documentation.

Key risk management principles

Swiss Re's risk management is based on four fundamental principles. These apply consistently across all risk categories at Group

and legal entity level:

m Controlled risk-taking — Financial strength and sustainable value creation are central to Swiss Re’s value proposition. The
Group thus operates within a clearly defined risk policy and risk control framework.

= Clear accountability — Swiss Re’s operations are based on the principle of delegated and clearly defined authority. Individuals
are accountable for the risks they take on, and their incentives are aligned with Swiss Re’s overall business objectives.

m Independent risk controlling — Dedicated units within Risk Management control all risk-taking activities. These are supported
by Compliance and Group Internal Audit functions.

= Open risk culture ~ Risk transparency, knowledge-sharing and responsiveness to change are integral to the risk control
process. The central goal of risk transparency is to create a culture of mutual trust and reduce the likelihood of surprises in the
source and potential magnitude of losses.

Fundamental roles for delegated risk-taking

Risk-taking activities are typically subject to three lines of control. The first line comprises Lhe day-to-day risk control activities
performed by risk takers in the business as well as in Group functions, including proactive identification of risks, as well as
establishing and operating an effective control system.

Independent oversight perfarmed by functions such as Risk Management and Compliance represents the second line of control.
The third line consists of independent audits of processes and procedures carried out by Group Internal Audit or by external
auditors. This approach is designed to achieve a strong. coherent and Group-wide risk culture built on the principles of
ownership and accountability.

Swiss Re operates within a clearly defined risk control framework. This is set out in the Group Risk Management Standards and

comprises a body of standards that establish an internal control system for taking and managing risk, These standards set

responsibilities for risk takers and risk contrallers. The risk control framewaork defines key tasks, which are the core components

of Swiss Re’s risk management cycle:

= Risk tolerance and appetite assessment of plan — ensures that the risk implications of plans are understood and determines
whether business and investment plans adhere to the internal risk appetite framewaork (risk appetite and tolerance).

m Risk identification — ensures that all risks to which Swiss Re is exposed are transparent in order to make them controllable and
manageable.

= Risk measurement — enables Swiss Re to understand the magnitude of its risks and to set quantitative controls that limit its
risk-taking.

m Risk limit framework — allows Swiss Re to control its risk-taking decisions and total risk accumulations, including the passive
risk itis exposed to through its operations.

= Risk reporting - creates internal risk transparency and enables Swiss Re to meet external disclosure reguirements.

The Company’s Target Capital includes capital held against the core insurance and financial market risks, operational risks and
counterparty credit risks via the Prudential Capital Requirement. An additional component of Target Capital is held against
core insurance, financial market and operational risks within the Capital Buffer.

Management of key risks

Strategic Risk

Overall responsibility for managing strategic risk lies with the Group Board, which establishes Swiss Re's overall strategy. The
SRLHA Board is responsible for the strategic risk inherent in strategy development and execution. Strategic risks are addressed
by examining multi-year scenarios, considering the related risks, as well as manitoring the implementation of the chosen strategy
year-by-year in terms of the annual business plan. )

As part of their independent oversight role, Risk Management, Compliance and Group Internal Audit are responsible for
controlling the risk-taking arising from the implementation of the strategy.

Insurance Risk

Insurance risk is the risk of incurring a financial lass from coverage provided for life and health risks. It arises from the business
written by the Company to provide cover for mortality, morbidity and longevity. There are also potential shock events such as a
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severe pandemic or a catastrophe and underlying risks in pricing and valuation, which arise when mortality, morbidity or lapse
experience deviates from expectations.

Insurance risk is managed using two approaches:

Underwriting

Underwriting risk is the risk of loss where the underwriting decision inappropriately accepts or rejects a risk. The Company’s
underwriting pnilosophy is to ensure that insurance risk is only accepted consistent with risk appetite and chosen pricing terms.
Key controls in the underwriting process include the application and maintenance of the delegation of authority framework, and
underwriting policy and associated rules and guidelines.

Retrocession management
Retracession is used to manage the volatility of insurance risk and to limit the exposure to significant, individual or aggregated
risks or risk concentrations.

The credit risk section of this note provides information about the Company's credit risk exposure in respect of retrocession
receivables at the year-end date.

Claims management and review of claims liabilities

The Company has a documented claims management policy, claims procedures and claims delegation of authority framework.

Claims are subject to the following controls:

s processes to ensure all liabilities are captured. updated on a timely basis and paid to the extent of the sum insured once they
have been assessed for their eligibility; and

s total claims liabilities are reviewed and validated by an actuary and reviewed on a minimum annual basis by the Appointed
Actuary

The Company's approach to determining policy liahilities and the related sensitivities is set out in note 3 Actuarial methods and
assumptions.

Asset Liability Matching

The principal aims of the Company’s Asset Liability Management (ALM) are to match assets to the liabilities arising from
insurance and investment conlracts by reference to Lhe type of benefits payable to contract holders and, to achieve long term
investmenl returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and investment contracts. A separate portfolio of assels is
maintained for each distinct category of liabilities. The Company’s ALM also forms an integral part of the insurance risk
management policy, to ensure in each period, sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts.
ALM is reviewed regularly and implemented via the investment guidelines of the Company.

Financial market risk

Financial market risk is the risk that assets or liabilities may be impaired by movements in financial market prices or rates, such as
equity prices, interest rates, credit spreads or foreign exchange rates. It is managed for the Company by Financial Risk
Management, an independent corporate function. Financial market risk exists for policyholders and shareholders and is a
fundamental characteristic of the Company’s business.

All activities involving financial market risk are subject to limits at various levels of the organisation. In addition to an overall Group
limit for market and credit risk, Swiss Re has established limits by risk factor and business area — including limits for the Group's
external investment managers. The Asset Management unit determines a more detailed set of risk limits for its portfolio
mandates. In addition, the Company’s Investment Guidelines contain local constraints on the permissible asset mix and limits,
These limits arc set in order to target and reduce particular types of risks.

The Company is required to record ils investment assets at [air value, with unrealised movements in market value recognised as
incame or expense in the period in which they occur. Accordingly, the Tull extent of exposure to markel movemnents is reflected in
the Statement of Financial Position. The Company manages market risk by maintaining a balanced portfolio with an appropriate
spread selection and duration of investment assets to support the underlying policy liabilities,

Currency risk, equity and other market price risk and interest rate risk are components of market risk.

Currency Risk ;

The Company operates in Australia and New Zealand and assets are held in original currency to match the expected reinsurance
contract liabilities. A residual foreign exchange translation exposure results from net assets of the New Zealand branch. A 5%
(2021: 3%) strengthening of the Australian dollar against the New Zealand dollar would decrease OCl and Equity by $8.7 million
(2021; $4.9 million) and a 5% (2021: 3%) weakening of the Australian dollar against the New Zealand dollar would have had
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the equal but opposite effect to these amounts. Furthermare, the Company has a foreign exchange risk as a result of expenses
incurred in foreign currencies.

Equity and Other Market Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arising from the change in fair value of investments held by the Company
as a result of changes in levels of equity indices and the value of individual shares. Price risk also exists for unit trust investments
held by the Company whereby trust exit prices are impacted by equity, property and other price changes in the trusts’
investment portfolios.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Company’s earnings arising from movements in interest rates, including changes in the absolute
levels of interest rates. the shape of the yield curve, the margin between different yield curves and the volatility of interest rates.
Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in various activities of the Company.
Management of those risks is decentralised according to the activity.

Interest rate risk arises to the extent that there is an economic mismatch between the timing of payments to life policyholders and
the duration of the assets held.

Management of various risks associated with investments are subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life
Act. The Company is required to satisfy capital adequacy requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest
rate risk to the extent that assets are not matched against liabilities. The Company manages interest rate and other market risks
pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that has regard to the Board's target surplus for capital as advised by the
Appointed Actuary.

The following table summarises how changes in key variables would impact the Company’s investment assets and financial
position at the respective year-end dates:

in thousands of Australian dollars Change invariable Impact upon Profit and Equity after Tax
2022 2021 2022 2021

Adverse change in risk variable:

Interest rates +50bps +60bps (10.935) [13.269)

Equity market prices +10% +10% (1,287) (1.397)

Credit spreads +50bps +50bps (11.639) (14,178)

Favourable change in risk variable:

Interest rates -b0bps -50bps 11,036 13.861
Equity market prices -10% —10% 1,287 1,397
Credit spreads -50bps -50bps 11,374 13.895
Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential of loss arising from failure of a debtor or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations or
due to a credit downgrade of a counterparty. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of each
recognised financial asset as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

Creditlimits are assigned at Group level as well as by Business Unit, by corporate counterparty and country. These limits are
based on a variety of factors, including the prevailing economic environment, the nature of the underlying credit exposures and a
detailed internal assessment of the counterparty’s financial strength, industry position and other qualitative factors. Group Risk
Management is also responsible for regularly monitoring corporate counterparty credit quality and exposures, and compiling
watch lists of cases that merit close attention.

Credit risk is managed and monitored by dedicated Credit Risk Management teams, supported by a Group-wide credit exposure
information system that contains all relevant data, including counterparty details, ratings, credit risk exposures, credit limits and
watch lists.

A key counterparty risk for the Company occurs due to the use of retrocession, as large loss events or cumulative losses on
retroceded portfolios may lead to a significant counterparty exposure. For the Company, the predominant counterparty exposure
is with Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd (SRZ) in Zurich. The net exposure to SRZ at 31 December 2022 is $1,644 million (2021
$2.170 million).
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An amount of $70 million reinsurance recoverable to our cedents is secured by a letter of credit balance (2021: nil).

Credit Quality

The majority of investment assets are unsecured. However, the Company seeks to minimise its credit risk by appropriate
selection and spread of investment assets. This is managed through the investment guidelines set by the Board of the Company.
There are no material exposures in respect of other financial assets and financial liabilities. The Company also performs a review
of doubtful debts in relation to outstanding amounts due from clients.

The following table is a summary of credit ratings for rated investment assets which include cash and cash equivalents, deposits
and debt securities.

in thousands of Australian dollars ADS Ady A BBAR Mot rated Tolal
2022

Cash and cash equivalents 4,704 49724 3,435 ~ - 57,863
Trade and other receivables 5568 2,266 265,776 75.336 387,782 736,728
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 836,068 240,168 302,284 270,325 . 1,738,835
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract

liabilities . = 806.539 - - 806,638
Total 846,330 292,158 1,468,034 345,661 387,782 3,339,965
in thousands of Australian dollars AAA fara) A BEB Mot rated Total
2021

Cash and cash equivalents 13.999 107.234 11,136 - - 132,369
Trade and other receivables 9,052 2,196 373,736 49,601 281,264 715,848
Financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss 862.500 283,974 390,109 258,940 = 1,795,523
Retrocessionaires’ share of life insurance contract

liabilities - - 1.218,046 = = 1.218.048
Total 885,551 393,404 1,993,026 308,541 281.264 3,861,786

The Company does not have financial assets that are past due or have been impaired at either the 2022 or 2021 year-end dates.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is not able to meet its debt obligations or other cash outflows as they fall due because
of an inahility to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required.

The Company's expasure to liquidity risk stems mainly from two sources: the need to cover potential extreme loss events and
regulatory constraints.

To manage liquidity risks, Swiss Re has a range of liquidity policies and measures in place. In particular, the Group aims fo ensure
that:

» Sufficient liquidity is held to meet funding requirements even under adverse circumstances,

s Funding is charged and credited at an appropriate market rate through internal transfer pricing;

s Diversified sources are used to meet Swiss Re's residual funding needs: and

s Long-term liguidity needs are taken into account in the planning process and in the management of financial market risk.

Swiss Re's core liquidity policy is to retain sufficient liquidity, in the form of unencumbered liquid assets and cash, to meet
potential funding requirements arising from a range of possible stress events. To allow for regulatory restrictions on intra-group
funding. liquidity is managed within groups of entities, knawn as liquidity pools. The amount of liquidity held in each pool is
largely determined by internal liquidity stress tests, which estimate the potential funding requirements stemming from extreme
loss events.

Group Treasury reviews liquidity positions for the Company semi-annually {or more frequently as necessary), to assess the
liquidity sources and requirements.
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The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial and insurance liabilities at the respective balance
dates. based on the undiscounted contractual obligations remaining.

Undiscounted contractual obligations remaming

Greater than
in theusands of Australian dollars Carrying value Upto 1 vear 1105 years 5 years Tatal
2022
Trade and other payables 423,936 423,936 = - 423,936
Provisions 8,900 8,300 ) - 8,900
Life insurance contract liahilities assumed 1687524 648 644 504,930 1,593,063 2,746,637
Life investment contract liabilities assumed 71,384 18,923 36,344 16,117 71,384
Total 2,091,744 1,100,403 541,274 1,609,180 3,250,857

Undiscounted contractual obligations remaining

Graater than
in thousands of Australian dollars Carrying value Upto 1 year 1ta byears 5 years Tatal
2021
Trade and other payables 359,591 359,591 = 5 359,591
Provisions 71,038 71.038 7 - 71,038
Life insurance contract liabilities assumed 2,182,859 808,630 646,600 1,951,680 3,406,910
Life investment contract liabilities assumed 84,301 19.499 45,409 19.393 84,301
Total 2,697,789 1,258,758 692,009 1,971,073 3,921,840

Operational Risk

Operational risk arises from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems risks or external events, including
compliance risk and financial reporting misstatement risk. These risks can also arise for SRLHA from its operational
dependencies within the wider Swiss Re Group and from distribution and administrative arrangements with external parties.

Since Swiss Re does not receive an explicit financial return for the operational risk inherent within business processes, the
approach to managing operational risk differs from the approach applied to other risk classes. Swiss Re has implemented a
methodology, based on the concept of three lines of defence. designed to achieve a strang. coherent and group wide operational
risk culture built on the overriding principles of ownership and accountability. This methodology is implemented in the Company.

The ultimate goal of operational risk management is not to eliminate operational risk per se but to identify, assess, pre-emptively
manage, and to cost effectively remediate where the risk exceeds the Company's tolerance for expected and/or potentially
severe operational losses. When assessing operational risk, the primary decision is whether additional actions and resources are
needed to reduce risk to desired levels, and that such decisions are properly reflected within risk assessments completed by
responsible management (within self-assessments), based on a centrally coordinated methodology.

The management of operational risk at the Company is monitored using business Risk and Control Seli-Assessments, which are
prepared by key risk takers reported to the Board Risk Committee half-yearly.

Risk culture

Swiss Re fosters and maintains a strong risk culture to promote risk awareness and discipline across all its activities. This risk
culture stands for the risk- and control related values, knowledge and behaviour shared by all employees. Its principal
components are summarised in a framework that builds on the Group’s Code of Conduct as well as on key risk management
principles in the Group Risk Policy.

The risk culture framework serves to influence appropriate risk-taking behaviour in four key aspects, which are assessed annually
for all employees in the performance and compensation process:

Leadership in providing clear vision and direction

Consideration of risk-relevant information in decision-making

Risk governance and accountability of risk control activities as well as transparent flow of risk information

Embedding of risk management skills and competencies Swiss Re’s risk culture provides the foundation for the efficient and
effective application of its Group-wide risk management framework. Group Risk Management reinforces the risk culture by
ensuring risk transparency and fostering open discussion and challenge in the Group's risk-taking and risk management
processes.
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Key risk takers across Sw';‘ss-f%e_ are.a.particular foc:us-in'_‘prom'oting-_goqd-'ris_k-a_nd,_'contrm—rela_ted_behav‘iours. The relevant
positions are identified in-a regular process, and those whe hald them.are subject yu additional behavioural objectivés and
assessments:

Risk culture i directly linked to Swiss Re's performance management, which is based not onlyon Lusinessresults butalse.on
behaviours, Swiss Re's compeénsation frarrework.gims to foster compiiance and support sensible risk-taking:-SwissRe also hasa,
range of incentive programmas thatreflect the long-term nature of Tis business by rewarding sustained performance rather than
shart-termi resuits. This helps-.t_‘o_-a'lign_shareho_lder ant employee interests. SWi_'ss'_-H__e'.s}r;_qmpehs‘ation'p_rinciples and framewvark
arécaptured-within the Swiss e Group Compensation Policy. SRLHAs Board People & Culture Committee oversass the
performance of risk behaviours and the linkowith rémunsration:

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory developments and refated risks that may affect Swiss fé and its subsidiaries.or branches are identifiéd. assessed and
monitored as part of regular'overs‘igﬁt'activiti_es(SWiss Re 1's-‘ac_tive]y.eng_a_ggd'._in_.-a-dlabgue'with relevant reguiatdirs to improve
routual understanding of the implications arising from rew regulatory proposals, Periadic reports and recommendations on
rsGulatory issugs are provided 10 executive management.and. the SRLHA Board.

The regulatory environment-of the insurancejndustry continues tq;evol_ve..o_nibe national, regional and inferhatipnal lavel. While
SOMe, regulat’or‘y changes create.néw busingss opportunities, others came with:significafit costs and business fesirictions.
Growing regulatory complexity, inereased national prot_ec'tion’is‘rﬁ.andia-{r'agil'e gichal econorry dre persistent the_m_es_aﬂecting
régulation and the way Swiss Re operates worldwide: Regulatory efforis ars becoming increasingly forward-looking, aimed ata
‘broad range of emerging risks, bothi actual and perteived. [Fnewregulation isnotbased on clearly understood riskswith a view
to.materiality, and if thie-resulting raquirements are not harmonised with international standardsarid best practices, this may
Greate-an sxcessive burden far both insurers and policyholders. '

It remains a key priority for Swiss Re to. highlight thé-negative impacts of market access restrictions orimpediments to gighal
diversification towards regulators. At the same ti e, such risks.are mitigated by seeking solutibns that feduce tha negative
impact on Sviss Re and ifs clients. There is ongoing regulatory, sttention on-enhancing sustainability disclosure.

Forward-looking climate risk assessments. such as sceriario analyses or stress testing, are gaining traction. These regulalory
initiatives differ.in scope, methodolofy and key assumptions. Swiss.Re supports such mieasures-and continues to advocate ffg_r d
harmonised and grédual implementation of these requirements-in'line-witﬁ international standards and recommendations, such
45 those of the Financial Stability Board Task Forge on Climate-related Financial Disclosure {TCFD). Swiss Re continues in its’
efforts taj-.dis_c‘gurag_e_-r(-_:_gulatory'fragment’atiﬂn and-ensufe fhat requirements are.appropriate,

Swiss-Re congisténtly advocates the removal of reduction of market access batriers, so that policyholders, govérnments,
taxpayers and national stengmies.can fqlly-benefit-from'internat‘mhal diversification and therefore from reliable sound and
affordable rigk cover and transfer.

“With markets more stable following the pandemic shock, supervisors, regulators. standard-setters and other actors have
Significantly ramped up éfforts in the digital policy space, COVIDAS has.acceleraléd disgussions _ar_ound-ogerafiqnal'resiii’eh’ce,
cybarsecurity rulss-and third-party pravider concehtration risks. Swiss Be follows these topics closely and menitors thieir
potential impact. ' '
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23. Cash flow infoarmation
Reconciliation of net loss after tax to net cash (utilised)/provided by operating activities

inthousands of Australian dollars 2022 2021
Net loss after tax {42,333) (19.607)

Add items classified as investing activities:
Net realised and unrealised loss 110,403 65,877

Net profit after tax provided by operating activities 68,070 46,070

Change in assets and liabilities excluding impact of foreign exchange revaluation:

Decrease in current and deferred tax assets 130,265 5,771
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables {20,880) 28,386
Decrease/(increase) in capitalised software 166 (129)
Decrease in net life insurance contract liabilities (196,745) (101,910)
Increase in trade and other payables 64,345 62,138
Decrease in pravisions (64,6486) (18.359)
Net cash (utilised)/provided by operating activities (19,325) 21,967

Cash and cash equivalents _
2022 2071

Cash at bank 49,724 107,234
Deposits at call 3,435 11.136
Short term investments 4,704 13,999
Total 57,863 132,369

Deposits at call are presented as cash equivalents if they have an original maturity of three months or less.

24. Capital expenditure commitments

The Company has not entered into any contracts for capital expenditure which have not bean provided for in the financial
staternents.

25. Contingencies

The Company does not have any contingent liabilities ather than thase already recognised in Note 15.

26. Events occurring after the year-end date
The Directors of the Company are nol aware of any matters or circumstances that have occurred since the end of the financial

year thal have significantly affected or may significantly alfect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or
the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent financial years.
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Directors’ declaration

In the Directors’ opinion:

(a) The financial statements and notes set out on pages 6 to 492 are in accordance with the Corparations Act 2001, including:
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards. the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and
(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2022 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and
(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

This 1aration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Az s

T Thomsan
Managing Director

Sydney,
29 March 2023
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Independent Auditor's Repart

To the shareholder of Swiss Re Life & Health Australia Limited

We have audited the Financial Report of Swiss The Financial Report comprises:
Re Life & Health Australia Limited (the Company).
e Statement of Financial Position as at

In our opinion, the accompanyin Financial
i penys 31 December 2022;

Report of the Company is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including: « Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended,

e giving a true and fair view of the Company's
financial position as at 31 December 2022
and of its financial performance for the year
ended on that date; and e Notes including a summary of

significant accounting policies; and

e complying with Australian Accounting
Srandards and the Corporations Regulations e Directors’ Declaration.
2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Swiss Re Life & Health Australia Limited’s
annual reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The
Directors are responsible for the Other Information.

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information.
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In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, and based on the work we have performed an the Other Information that we obtained
prior to the date of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for:

« preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001;

e implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and

e assessing the Company's ahility to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the
going concern bhasis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Qur objective is:

e to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e 10 issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

hitp://mww.auasb.aov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our Auditor's
Report.

oty Jua Oquad

KPMG Julia Gunn
Partner

Sydney

29 March 2023
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